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THE INDIA JUTE AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

CIN: L17119WB1916PLC002720 

4A Shree Ganesh Business Centre, 216 Acharya J.C. Bose Road, 

Kolkata-700017, West Bengal, India 

Ph No.: +91-3322871640 

Email:  indiajuteltd@gmail.com; Website: https:// www.indiajute.in / 

 

 

N O T I C E FOR THE 108TH AGM 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 108th  Annual General Meeting of the Members of THE 

INDIA JUTE AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED (‘the Company’) will be held on Monday, the 

30th September, 2024 at 10:15 A.M. at 4A, Shree Ganesh Business Centre, 216, Acharya J.C. 

Bose Road, Kolkata – 700 017 to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st 

March, 2024 together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon and to pass 

the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the year ended 

31st March, 2024 and the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon, placed before 

this Meeting, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 

 

2. To appoint Mr. Aniruddh Tukaram Jadhav (DIN: 01719617), Director retiring by rotation, 

eligible for re-appointment and pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 

2013, Mr. Aniruddh Tukaram Jadhav (DIN: 01719617), who retires by rotation at this 

Meeting under the provisions of the Company Act, 2013, be and is hereby reappointed as 

Director of the Company.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

 

3. To re-appoint Mr. Dinesh Kumar Sharma (DIN: 08538616) as Independent Director and pass 

the following Resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, read along with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) [including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force], the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 17 and any other 

applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), as amended from time 
to time, Mr. Dinesh Kumar Sharma (DIN: 08538616), who was appointed as an Independent 

Director of the Company at the 103rd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27th 

September, 2019 and who holds office of Independent Director upto 27th September, 2024 and 

who being eligible for re-appointment as an Independent Director has given his consent along with 

a declaration that he meets the criteria for independence under Section 149(6) of the Act and the 

rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and in respect of 

whom the Company has received a Notice in writing from a Member under Section 160(1) of the 

Act proposing his candidature for the office of Director and based on the recommendation of the 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is 

hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to 

hold office for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years on the Board of the Company 

commencing from 28th September, 2024  to 27th September, 2029,  (both days inclusive).  

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Bharat Kumar Jalan (DIN: 00876208), Managing 

Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized to undertake all such acts, deeds, 

matters and things to finalise and execute all such deeds, documents and writings as may 

be deemed necessary, proper, desirable and expedient in its absolute discretion to enable 

this resolution and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in this regard.” 

 

4. To re-appoint Mrs. Pragati Raghavdas Mundra (DIN: 02870649) as Independent Director and 

pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, read along with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) [including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force], the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 17 and any other 

applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), as amended from time 
to time, Mrs. Pragati Raghavdas Mundra (DIN: 02870649), who was appointed as an Independent 

Director of the Company at the 103rd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27th 

September, 2019 and who holds office of Independent Director upto 27th September, 2024 and 

who being eligible for re-appointment as an Independent Director has given his consent along with 

a declaration that she meets the criteria for independence under Section 149(6) of the Act and the 

rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and in respect of 

whom the Company has received a Notice in writing from a Member under Section 160(1) of the 



  

 

Act proposing his candidature for the office of Director and based on the recommendation of the 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is 

hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to 

hold office for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years on the Board of the Company 

commencing from 28th September, 2024  to 27th September, 2029,  (both days inclusive).  

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Bharat Kumar Jalan (DIN: 00876208), Managing 

Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized to undertake all such acts, deeds, 

matters and things to finalise and execute all such deeds, documents and writings as may 

be deemed necessary, proper, desirable and expedient in its absolute discretion to enable 

this resolution and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in this regard.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Registered Office:         By Order of the Board of the Directors              

4A, Shree Ganesh Business Centre                  For The India Jute and Industries Limited 

216, Acharya J. C. Bose Road                                           

Kolkata – 700 017                 

Date: 07th September, 2024                    

                                                                             Sd/- 

                         (Bharat Kumar Jalan)  

                                                              Managing Director 

                                                              DIN: 00876208 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                          

 



  

 

 

NOTES: 

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote 

on a poll instead of him and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

 

A proxy, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company’s Registered Office at 4A, Shree 
Ganesh Business Centre, 216, Acharya J.C. Bose Road, Kolkata – 700 017, not less than forty - 

eight hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

 

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate 

shares not more than 10 percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A 

member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting 

rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other 

member. 

 

2. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative(s) to attend the Meeting are 

requested to send to the Company a certified true copy of the relevant Board Resolution together 

with the specimen signature(s) of the representative(s) authorized under the said Board Resolution 

to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

 

3. All documents referred to in the Notice are available for inspection at the Registered Office of the 

Company during office hours on all days except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays upto the 

date of the Annual General Meeting. 

 

4. Attendance slip and proxy form of the Meeting are annexed hereto.  

 

5. Members/ proxies/ authorized representatives should: 

a. Bring their duly filled in Attendance Slips, as enclosed, for easy identification of attendance at 

the AGM Venue. 

b. Bring their copies of the Annual Report to the Meeting. 

 

6. The Register of Members of the Company will remain closed from 23rd September, 2024 to 30th 

September, 2024 both days inclusive. 

 

7. The Company is registered with National Securities Depository Ltd. (‘NSDL’), for 
dematerialization of its Equity Shares which has been allotted the ISIN INE0ERT01016. S K 

Infosolutions Pvt. Ltd. having its office at D/42, Katju Nagar, Jadavpur, Kolkata- 700032 is the 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. 

 

8. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate immediately any change in 

their address and bank mandates to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining 

their DEMAT accounts. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to advise any 

change in their address or bank mandates to the Company/Company’s Registrar and Transfer 
Agent, S K Infosolutions Pvt. Ltd. The notification of change of address should be accompanied by 

the address proof, i.e., voter’s identity card, electric/telephone bill, driving license or a copy of the 

passport or bank statement of the member. 



  

 

 

 

 

9. The notice of AGM is being sent through e-mail to those shareholders whose e-mail address is 

registered with the Company/depository. Members may note that the notice of AGM is also 

available on the Company’s website at https://www.indiajute.in/. 

 

10. To support the “Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
for paperless compliances by companies, members are requested to register their e-mail addresses, 

in respect of their holdings in the securities of the Company, for service of notice/documents 

including Annual Reports by the Company by email. 

 

11. Any query relating to the Resolutions and Voting proposed to be passed at the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting (AGM) may be addressed to the Company Secretary of the Company. 

 

12. Voting can be exercised only by the concerned Member or his/her duly constituted attorney or, in 

case of bodies corporate, its duly authorized person. A member need not use all his/her votes. 

 

13. Members are requested to login to the e-voting system of National Securities Depository Limited 

(NSDL) at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ under ‘Shareholder / Member – Login’ by using their 
remote e-voting User ID and password. Thereafter, they are required to click on the link appearing 

under ‘Join General Meeting’ against the Electronic Voting Identification Number                    
(EVEN) – 131603, pertaining to the Company. 

 

14. PROCESS FOR MEMBERS OPTING FOR E-VOTING 

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 20 of 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and sub-clause (1) & (2) of Regulation 

44 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company will be providing members facility to exercise 

their rights to vote on resolution proposed to be considered at the ensuing Annual General Meeting 

(AGM) by electronics means and the business may be transacted through e-voting services. The 

facility of casting votes by members using an electronic voting system from a place other than 

venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by National Securities Depository Limited 

(NSDL). The detailed procedure to be followed in this regard has been given in Annexure A to the 

Notice. The members are requested to go through them carefully. 
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Annexure A 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS 

UNDER:- 

 

The remote e-voting period begins on 27.09.2024, at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 29.09.2024 

at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 

thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial 

Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 24.09.2024, may cast their vote 

electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the 

paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 24.09.2024. 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 
mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 

accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of 

NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page 

click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which 

is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to 

enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful 

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 

under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” 

under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting 

page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDLand you will be re-directed to e-Voting 

website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-

Voting period Ifyou are not registered for IDeAS e-

Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for  

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/


  

 

 

2. IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 

typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 

either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 

home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 

“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 

User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold 

with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 

shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you 

will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can 

see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 

service provider i.e. NSDLand you will be redirected to e-

Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period.  

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile 

App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code 
mentioned below for seamless voting experience. 

 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can 

login through their existing user id and password. Option 

will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any 

further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are 

requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and 

click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user 

your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to 

see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the 

evoting is in progress as per the information provided by 

company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be 

able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider 

for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

Additionally, there is also links provided to access the 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/


  

 

system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user 

can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 
 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 

register is available at CDSL website 

www.cdslindia.comand click on login & New System 

Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 

providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-

Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. 

The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 

registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 

Account. After successful authentication, user will be able 

to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress 

and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting 

Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders 

(holding securities in 

demat mode) login 

through their depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 

account through your Depository Participant registered with 

NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be 

able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be 

redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will 

be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to 

use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 

issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  

evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 

2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at toll free 

no. 1800 22 55 33 

  

http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com


  

 

 

B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 
is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP 

and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to 

NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can 

proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 

 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 

Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 

and Client ID is 12****** then your user 

ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 

Number registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** 

and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 

101456001*** 

 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 

password to login and cast your vote. 

 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to 

retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/


  

 

retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the 
system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the 

company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email 
ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open 

the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The 

password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL 

account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for 

shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and 
your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below 

in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have 
forgotten your password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your 
demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send 

a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio 

number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 

votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting 
on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronicallyon NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronicallyon NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in 
which you are holding shares and whose voting cycleis in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-

Voting period. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 

number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in


  

 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option 

on the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 

vote. 



  

 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 

send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 

letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who 

are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to dasharma2018@gmail.com with 

a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 

individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of 

Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority 

Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 

utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 

disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an 

event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical 

User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the 
password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 

Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download 

section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000  or 

send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories 

for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 

resolutions set out in this notice: 

 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of 

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested 

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) 

by email to indiajuteltd@gmail.com. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + 

CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated 

Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 

attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to indiajuteltd@gmail.com. 

3. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are 

requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.Login method for e-

Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

4. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor 

procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned 

documents. 

5. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by 

Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are 

allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 

Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and 

email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

mailto:dasharma2018@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in


  

 

 
  

                                                                                    ANNEXED TO THE NOTICE  

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 

For Item No.3 & 4 

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Sharma (DIN: 08538616) and Ms. Pragati Raghavdas Mundra (DIN: 02870649) 

were appointed as Independent Directors on the Board of your Company pursuant to the provisions of 

section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), by 
the Shareholders at the 103rd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27th  September, 2019. 

They hold office as Independent Directors of the Company upto 27th Septembert, 2024 (“first term”) 
in line with section 149(10) and (11) of the Act. 

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) on the basis of performance evaluation of 
Independent Directors and taking into account the external business environment, the business 

knowledge, acumen, experience and the substantial contribution made by Mr. Dinesh Kumar Sharma 

and Ms. Pragati Raghavdas Mundra during their tenure, has recommended to the Board that their 

continued association as Independent Directors of the Company would be beneficial to the Company 
Based on the above and the performance evaluation of Independent Directors, the Board has 

recommended the re-appointment of Mr.  Dinesh Kumar Sharma (DIN: 08538616) and Ms. Pragati 

Raghavdas Mundra (DIN: 02870649), as Independent Directors of the Company, not liable to retire by 

rotation, to hold office for a second term. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Registered Office:         By Order of the Board of the Directors              

4A, Shree Ganesh Business Centre                  For The India Jute and Industries Limited 

216, Acharya J. C. Bose Road                                           

Kolkata – 700 017                 

Date: 07th September, 2024                    

                                                                             Sd/- 

                         (Bharat Kumar Jalan)  

                                                              Managing Director 

                                                              DIN: 00876208 
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(FORM NO. MGT-11) 

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I/ We being the member(s) of _________________________ shares of The India Jute and Industries Limited hereby 

appoint, 

(1) Name        :__________________________________________________________________________________ 

      Address    :_______________________________________________________________________________ 

      E-mail Id   :___________________________Signature: _________________________________ or failing him 

(2) Name        :__________________________________________________________________________________ 

      Address    :_______________________________________________________________________________ 

      E-mail Id   :___________________________Signature: _________________________________ or failing him 

(3) Name        :__________________________________________________________________________________ 

      Address    :_______________________________________________________________________________ 

      E-mail Id   :___________________________Signature: _________________________________ or failing him 

 

 

 

1. Name of the Shareholder(s)  : 

2. Registered Address   : 

 

3. E-mail ID    : 

4. Registered Folio No./ 

    Client ID No./ DP ID No.  : 

PROXY FORM 

http://www.manikaranpowerltd.in/


  

 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at 108th Annual General Meeting of 

members of the Company, to be held on 30th September, 2024 at 10:15 a.m. at the Registered office of the Company 

at The India Jute and Industries Limited, 4A Shree Ganesh Business Centre, 216 Acharya J.C. Bose Road, Kolkata-

700017 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

Resolution 

Number 

Description         Optional (√ ) 
     For Against 

Ordinary Resolutions 

1. Adoption of the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the year 

ended 31st March, 2024, and the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors  

thereon. 

  

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Aniruddh Tukaram Jadhav (DIN: 01719617) 
Directors retiring by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. 

  

Special Resolution 

3.  Re-appointment of Mr. Dinesh Kumar Sharma (DIN: 08538616) as  

Independent Director.  

  

4. Re-appointment of Mrs. Pragati Raghavdas Mundra (DIN: 02870649) as  

Independent Director. 

  

 

Signed this_____________day of___________2024. 

 

 

Folio/ DP ID/ Client ID______________Signature of Shareholder_____________________ 

 

 

Signature of Proxy holder(s)______________________________________________________ 

 

 

Note: 1. This Proxy form, in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office 

of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting i.e. by 10:15 a.m. on 28th 

September, 2024. 

          2. It is optional to put a “√” in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave 
the “For” or “Against” column blank against any or all Resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in 

the manner as he/she thinks appropriate. 
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Monday               4A Shree Ganesh Business Centre,                 10.15 A.M. 

30th SEPTEMBER, 2024            216 Acharya J.C. Bose Road, Kolkata-700017 

 

 

Name & Address of Member 
 

 

 

 

 

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 108th Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company held on 

Monday, 30th September, 2024 at 4A Shree Ganesh Business Centre, 216 A.J.C. Bose Road, Kolkata-700017. 

 

No. of Shares___________________________ 

_______________________________             ___________________________ _____________________ 

Member’s Folio/DP ID/ Client Id No.              Member’s Proxy Name in  Member’s/ Proxy Signature 

       Block Letters 

 

 

 Note: 1) Shareholders attending the meeting in person or by proxy are requested to complete the attendance 

slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall. 
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 

For the year ended 31st March, 2024 

 

To, 

The Members, 

 

Your Directors are pleased to present the 108th Annual Report and the Company’s audited financial 
statements for the Financial Year ended March 31st, 2024. 

 

Financial highlights of the Company  

The highlights of the company’s performance are as under: 
              (Amount in ‘000) 
Particulars Year ended 

31.03.2024 

Year ended 

31.03.2023 

Total Revenue 4,26,501.89 6,58,189.04 

Profit before Interest & Depreciation (15,422.92) 22,016.49 

Less: Depreciation 2,722.65 3,591.16 

Less: Interest 7,868.25 8,598.15 

Profit before Taxation (26,013.82) 9,827.18 

Less: Provision for Taxation Nil Nil 

Profit for the year (26,013.82) 9,827.18 

Balance brought forward from previous year (1,21,962.93) (1,31,790.10) 

Balance Available for appropriation (1,47,976.75) (1,21,962.93) 

Balance of Profit carried forward (1,47,976.75) (1,21,962.93) 

 

 

 

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES: 

 

a) Textile Division 

There has been a huge slowdown in the Textile market. Export market also has been reduced 

substantially resulting closure of many textile industries in India Including the textile industry hub in 

Surat (Gujarat), Tiruppur(Tamil Nadu),etc. The textile division is passing through the worst phase in 

these times and in order to remain in the market, we could only utilize 50% of our capacity. This has 

resulted huge losses to the Textile Division. However, we expect the situation will improve in the coming 

years. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

b) Fine Yarn & Carpet Division 

Due to very weak demand of jute yarn in the last financial year, our jute fine yarn has also suffered 

losses. But we expect the situation will improve this year.  

 

Carpet manufacturing unit is closed and under suspension of work.  

The segment wise working results of the company are as follows: 

                      (Rs. in ‘000)         
Particular

s 

Textile 

Division 

Fine Yarn 

Division 

Carpet 

Division 

Trad

ing 

Divis

ion 

Unallocate

d Income 

Unallocate

d Expense 

Total 

Total 

Revenue 

292618.53 130590.23 - - - - 423208.76 

Segment 

Results 

(19144.68) (1706.03) (144.14) - 2849.29 (7868.25) (26013.82) 

 

DIVIDEND: 

In view of losses suffered by the company, the Board of Directors do not recommend any dividend for 

the year under review.  

 

DEPOSITS: 

Your Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the Rules made thereunder and therefore, no amount of principal or interest was outstanding 

as on the date of Balance Sheet. 

 

RESERVES 

Your directors do not recommend any transfer of any amount to any reserves. 

DIVERSIFICATION OF BOARD AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

The current provisions is to have an appropriate mix of executive, non-executive, a woman  and 

independent directors to maintain the independence of the Board, and separate its functions of 

governance and management.  

 

As of March 31, 2024, the Board had four members, two of them are Executive directors and next two 

of them are Non-Executive. Out of two Non-Executive Directors, both of them are Independent Directors 

and one of the Independent directors of the Board is woman. 

None of the Directors of our Company is disqualified under provisions of Section 164(2) (a) and (b) of 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OF THE 

COMPANY ARE AS UNDER: 

NAME OF DIRECTORS& KMP DESIGNATION  DIN/ PAN 

Mr. Bharat Kumar Jalan Managing Director 00876208 

Mr. Uday Kumar Srivastava Director 09128876 

Mrs. Pragati Raghavdas Mundhra Independent Director 02870649 

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Sharma Independent Director 08538616 

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Sharma 
Chief Financial Officer 

(KMP) 

ATYPS2610K 

Mr. Aniruddh Tukaram Jadhav Director 01719617 

Mr. Ravi Kumar Shaw Company Secretary (KMP) DOGPS8782J 

 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel  

 

Inductions, retirements and resignations 

 

Inductions 

During the period under review, Mr. Aniruddh Tukaram Jadhav new director has been induced in the 

company w.e.f 21.09.2023. 

 

Resignations 
During the period under review, Mr. Uday Kumar Srivastava existing director has serve their resignation 

in the company 13.09.2023. 

 

Key Managerial Personnel 
During the period under review, there is few changes mentioned above in the Key Managerial 

Personnel’s office has been taken place. 
 

DETAILS OF THE COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
As on March 31, 2024, the Board had two committees: the audit committee and the nomination & 

remuneration committee. A majority of the committees consists entirely of independent directors. During 

the year, all recommendations made by the committees were approved by the Board. 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Audit Committee 

The Board of Directors of the Company has duly constituted an Audit Committee pursuant to Section 

177 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) 

Rules, 2014. 

 

Composition of the Audit Committee as on the date of this report is as follows: 

1. Mr. Dinesh Kumar Sharma, Director- Chairman 

2. Mrs. Pragati Raghavdas Mundhra, Director - Member 

3. Mr. Bharat Kumar Jalan, Director- Member 

 

The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee. 

All recommendations of the Audit Committee were duly accepted by the Board and there were no 

instances of any disagreements between the Committee and the Board during the year. 

 

 

                   Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Pursuant to section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Meeting of 

Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Company has duly constituted a Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee of the Board. 

 

Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on the date of this report is as 

follows: 

 

1. Mr. Dinesh Kumar Sharma, Director - Chairman 

2. Mrs. Pragati Raghavdas Mundhra, Director – Member 
In Attendance 

3. Mr. Ravi Kumar Shaw (Company Secretary) 

 

POLICY FOR SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR 

REMUNERATION: 

The policy of the Company on directors’ appointment and remuneration, including the criteria for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters, as required 

under Sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 is according to the relevant provisions. 

We affirm that the remuneration paid to the directors is as per the terms laid out in the Nomination and 

Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

 

The Board of Directors ascertains the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for 

appointment as Director and Key Managerial Personnel. The appointment of Directors requires approval 

of the Board and thereafter approval of the shareholders in general meeting. 

 



 

 

The remuneration to the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel is proposed by the 

Board Members in the Board Meeting and approval of Shareholders is obtained, if required.  

  

The directors receive sitting fees for attending meeting of the Board. 

 

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Company has received necessary declaration from each independent director under Section 149(7) 

of the Companies Act, 2013, that he / she meets the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations. 

 

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, THE COMMITTEES AND DIRECTORS:  

In terms of section 134(3) (p) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board of Directors has adopted an 

annual evaluation process for evaluating its own performance as a whole and that of its Committees and 

of its individual Directors. 

 

As the law has not prescribed any evaluation methodology, the following factors have been considered 

for evaluating the performance of the Board/ Committees/ Directors/ Chairperson/ Managing Director 

on a case to case basis: 

 

 People factors (knowledge, personal characteristics, Board size, structure, directors’ contribution, 
interpersonal skills, level of commitment, Board room behavior, etc.); and 

 

 Process factors (planning and managing Board meetings, information flow, oversight management, 

risk management, coordination, etc.) 

 

Each Director has been given a Form for assessing the overall performance of the Board/ Committees/ 

Directors/ Chairperson/ Managing Director as the case may be, sufficiently in advance. The forms, which 

include a set of questions having a rating mechanism, are reviewed and analyzed by the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee before placing its feedback before the Board 

 

BOARD MEETINGS: 

 

Number of meetings of the Board of Directors 

During the financial year ended on 31st March 2024, 08 meetings of the Board of Directors of the 

Company were held. The dates on which the board meetings took place are 04.04.2023, 24.05.2023, 

07.07.2023, 14.08.2023, 26.08.2023, 21.09.2023, 07.12.2023 and 16.02.2024. 

 

SHARE CAPITAL 

The Paid-up Share Capital of the Company, comprising of equity shares is Rs. 2,58,00,000/- (Rupees 

Two Crore Fifty-Eight Lakh only) as on 31st March, 2024. The Company has not issued any shares with 

or without differential voting rights, granted stock options or issued sweat equity shares during the year 

under review. 

 



 

 

 

 

a) Issue of Equity Shares without differential rights:  

The Company has not issued Equity shares without differential rights during the financial year and 

hence the disclosure requirements in this connection will not apply to the Company accordingly.  

 

b) Issue of Preference Shares: 

The Company has not issued preference shares during the financial year and hence the disclosure 

requirements in this connection will not apply to the Company accordingly. 

 

 

c) Issue of Equity Shares with differential rights:  

The Company has not issued equity shares with differential rights during the financial year and 

hence the disclosure requirements in this connection will not apply to the Company accordingly.  

 

d) Issue of Sweat Equity Shares:  

The Company has not issued sweat equity shares during the financial year and hence the disclosure 

requirements in this connection will not apply to the Company accordingly. 

 

e) Buyback of shares: 

The Company has not bought back any Equity Shares during the FY 2023-24. 

 

f) Redemption of Preference Shares: 

The Company has not redeemed any Preference Shares during the FY 2023-24. 

 

g) Issue of Employee Stock Options (ESOP): 

The Company has not granted any Employee Stock Option during the FY 2023-24. Hence, 

disclosure of ESOP under Rule 12 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is 

not required. 

 

h) Details of Share transfer: 
         During the FY 2023-24 no transfer or transmission had taken place in the Company. 

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

Pursuant to Section 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) ) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time , the Company at the 

106th Annual General Meeting held in the year 2022, re-appointed M/s G. P. Agrawal & Co., Chartered 

Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 302082E), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 

five (5) consecutive years to hold office from the conclusion of one hundred and sixth (106th) Annual 

General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of the one hundred and eleventh (111th) AGM of the 

Company at such remuneration (plus goods and services tax and reimbursement of out of pocket 



 

 

expenses) as may be decided by the Board of Directors from time to time. They have 

audited the financial statements of the Company for the financial year under review.  

 

AUDITOR’S REPORT 

The Auditors’ observations have been dealt with in the notes which are self-explanatory and do not call 

for further clarification. 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND REPORT 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Ms. Puja Pujari & Associates, Company 

Secretary in whole-time practice (COP No. 20171) was appointed to conduct the secretarial audit of the 

Company for the financial year (F.Y.) 2023-24. The Secretarial Audit Report for the FY 2023-24 forms 

part of the Annual Report as Annexure-III to the Director's report. 

 

COST AUDITORS AND REPORT 

The Company is not required to comply with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 

2013, relating to Cost Audit of records. 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

At the beginning of each financial year, an audit plan is rolled out with the approval of the Company’s Audit 

Committee. The plan is aimed at evaluation of the efficacy and adequacy of internal control systems and 

compliance thereof, robustness of internal processes, policies and accounting procedures and compliance with 

laws and regulations. Based on the reports of internal audit, process owners undertake corrective action in their 

respective areas. Significant audit observations and corrective actions are periodically presented to the Audit 

Committee of the Board. 

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
Pursuant to requirement of clause I of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

Directors state that— 

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed 

along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of 

affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that 

period; 

(c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

(e) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 



 

 

Your Company has established a comprehensive Risk Management System to ensure 

and safe guard company’s objectives. To mitigate risks, actions are identified that would assist to make 
the risk to an acceptable level. Monitoring and reporting process has been defined to update Board of 

Directors.  

 

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS: 

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186 

Loans, guarantees and investments covered under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 forms part of 

the notes to financial statements provided in this Annual Report. 

 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED 

PARTIES 

All contracts or arrangements entered into by the Company with its related parties during the financial 

year were in accordance with the provisions of Section 188(1) the Companies Act, 2013. No material 

contracts or arrangements with related parties were entered into during the year under review. All the 

transactions entered with related parties during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and were 

in the ordinary course of business. So, pursuant to the fourth proviso to sub-section 1 of section 188 of 

the companies Act, 2013, the said transactions do not attract the compliances under the said sub-section. 

Thus, the disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not given. 

 

The details of the related party transactions as required under Indian Accounting Standard are set out in 

financial statements forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL 

The Company has in place, systems of internal financial controls commensurate with its size and the 

nature of its operations. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material 

weakness in the design or operation was observed. 

 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 

OF THE COMPANY BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF 

THE REPORT 

 

No material changes or commitments have occurred in the Company between the end of the financial 

year under review and the date of report. 

No materials changes or commitments or any significant and material adverse orders or rulings passed 

by the regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations 
in future have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of report. 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

 

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and 

outgo stipulated under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule, 8(3) of The 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed herewith as Annexure-I. 



 

 

 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of the annual return in Form No. MGT – 9 shall not form  

 

 

part of the Board’s report. The certified copy of MGT-7 will be uploaded to our website 

(www.indiajute.in). 

 

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS 

Your directors confirm that, during the year under review, the Company has duly complied with the 

applicable provisions of the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and 

General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

As a good corporate entity, the Company is committed to sound corporate practices based on openness, 

fairness, professionalism and accountability paving the way to building confidence among its 

stakeholders’ society for achieving sustainable long-term growth and profitability.  

 

Corporate Governance is a continuous journey for sustained value creation and it is an upward moving 

target.  In its pursuit of growth, excellence and commitment to values, corporate governance forms an 

integral part of the Company’s philosophy. 
 

Though the Company is a Listed Company, the provisions of Corporate Governance as per Listing 

Agreement do not apply to the Company. 

 

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION 

FUND 
The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as no dividend was declared 

and paid since incorporation. 

 

GENERAL  

 

Your Director further state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the 

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

Statement containing the particulars of employees as required pursuant to Section 197(12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules 2014 is annexed herewith as annexure II.  

 

 

DE-MATERIALIZATION OF SECURITIES 

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Third 

Amendment Rules, 2018 dated 10-09-2018 under Companies Act, 2013, your Company is having 

International Securities Identification Number (ISIN): INE0ERT01016 to facilitate de-materialization 

http://www.indiajute.in/


 

 

of equity shares of the Company. As on 31.03.2023, 7.54% equity shares of the 

company were in DEMAT form. 

 

 

 

ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS 

During the year under report, there were no significant and material orders passed by regulators or Courts 

or Tribunals, impacting the Company's going concern status and its future operations. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Your directors express their sincere appreciation for the dedication and commitment of all employees in 

sustaining and achieving improved results for the Company. Your directors also wish to thank the 

Customers, Principals, Shareholders, Banks, Financial Institutions and Government Authorities for their 

continued support and co-operation to the Company. The Board acknowledges with thanks the 

constructive suggestions received from the Statutory Auditors.  

 

 

                        For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

                        The India Jute and Industries Limited 

 

             

 

 

   

 

 

       Sd/-                                                     Sd/- 

Place: Kolkata                                    Bharat Kumar Jalan                        Dinesh Kumar Sharma 

Date: 31st August, 2024   (Managing Director)                         Director           

                             DIN: 00876208               DIN- 08538616 

  

                                                                                                                                                                

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 ANNEXURE-I 

 

PARTICULARS RELATING TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 

ABSORPTION ETC. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 

 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 

a) Energy conservation measures taken:   

The Company is taking effective steps for conservation of energy. To reduce energy cost various 

measures such as prevention of leakages, modification of electric lines and avoidance of idle 

running of motors have been initiated. Demand Controller has been installed to reduce energy 

cost by increasing Power Factor Rebate. 

 

 

b) Additional investments/proposals for reduction of consumption of energy: 

Additional investments are proposed to be made in following areas: 

        i) Better utilization of electric load. 

  ii) Better utilization of natural light by providing suitable sky light arrangements. 

 iii) Installation of static capacitors and its proper maintenance and 

 iv) Higher H.P. motors to be replaced by suitable H.P. motors. 

 

 c) Impact of the measures:   Will result in the overall economy. 

 

 

 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

The company intends to replace its old doubling machines and simplex machinery for better quality of 

textile yarns. 

 

Research & Development 

R&D activities were oriented towards improvement in various operational functions and to achieve cost 

reduction.     

   

 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO: 

     

There have been no foreign exchange earnings during the year. The foreign exchange outgo during the 

year amounting to Rs. 55,543.63 Thousand (Previous year Rs. 2,00,030.85 Thousand) on account of 

import of raw materials. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE-II 

 

PARTICULARS RELATING TO PARTICULARS OF THE EMPLOYEE FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024  

 

1. Remuneration Details for the Director’s and Key Managerial Personnel’s       

 

                                                                                                                                      (Amount in ‘000) 
 

 

 

Sl No. 

 

 

Particulars of 

Remuneration 

Name of Director/ Key Managerial Personnel’s 

 

 

Mr. Bharat 

Kumar Jalan, 

Managing 

Director 

Mr. Uday 

Kumar 

Srivastava, 

Director 

Mr. Ravi 

Kumar 

Shaw, 

Company 

Secretary 

Mr. Dinesh 

Kumar 

Sharma, 

CFO 

Mr. 

Aniruddh 

Tukaram 

Jadhav 

1. Gross salary  

(a) Salary as per 

provisions 

contained in 

section 17(1) of 

the Income-tax 

Act, 1961 (b) 

Value of 

perquisites u/s 

17(2) Income-

tax Act, 1961  

(c) Profits in 

lieu of salary 

under section 

17(3) Income 

tax Act, 1961 

 

900.00 

 

 

 

 

333.95 

 

 

 

 

433.42 

 

 

 

880.00 

 

 

 

382.33 

 

 

2. Stock Option NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

4. Commission - 

as % of profit  

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL NIL NIL 



 

 

                                                                                                                                                                       

 

 

2. Remuneration to Independent Directors: 

                                      (Amount in ‘000) 
Sl. No. Particulars of 

Remuneration 

Name of Directors  

 

    Total Amount   Mr. Dinesh 

Kumar Sharma  

Mrs. Pragati 

Raghavdas 

Mundhra 

1. Independent Directors  

(a) Fee for attending 

board meetings  

(b) Commission   

(c) Others 

 

 

 

 

 

2.4 

 

 

 

 

 

2.4 

 

 

 

 

 

4.8 

 Total (1) 2.4 2.4 4.8 

2. Others Non-Executive 

Directors  

(a) Fee for attending 

board meetings  

(b) Salary  

(c) Others 

 

- 

 

- 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

- 

 Total (2) - - - 

 Total (B)=(1+2) 2.4 2.4 4.8 

 Overall ceiling as per 

the Act 

Sitting Fee not to exceed Rs.1,00,000/- per meeting for each 

Director 

 

At present, there are 552 employees in Textile Division and 171 employees in Fine Yarn Division 

including labours, staffs and sub-staffs. 

- others 

5. Others NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 Total (A) 900.00 333.95 433.42 880.00 382.33 



 

        ANNEXURE-III 

 

Form No. MR-3 

 

Secretarial Audit Report 
For the financial year 1st April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024 

 [Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies                  

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members of 

The India Jute and Industries Limited 

 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 

good corporate practices by The India Jute and Industries Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). 

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.  

Based on my verification of the The India Jute and Industries Limited books, papers, minute books, forms 

and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby 

report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st 

March, 2024 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 

has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 

reporting made hereinafter. 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (The Act) and the Rules made there under; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent 

of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings. 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act,1992 (‘SEBI Act’):   
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares   and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009 (till November 9, 2018); (Not applicable as the Company has not issued any 

further share capital during the period under review)  
 

d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018 (w.e.f. November 9, 2018); (Not applicable as the Company has not issued 

any further share capital during the period under review)  
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 

Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;(Not applicable during the period under review) 



 

f) Securities   and   Exchange   Board   of   India (Issue   and   Listing   of   Debt 

Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable as the Company has not issued and listed any 

debt securities during the financial year under review) 
g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993. 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not 

applicable as there was no reportable event during the period under review)and 

i) Securities   and   Exchange   Board   of   India (Buyback   of   Securities) Regulations, 

2018; Not applicable during the review period ;( Not applicable as there was no reportable event 

during the period under review) 

(vi) Other Law applicable to the Company namely: 

a) Factories Act, 1948; 

b) Labour laws and other incidental laws related to labour and employees appointed by the Company 

including those on contractual basis as relating to wages, gratuity, prevention of sexual harassment, 

dispute resolution, welfare, provident fund, insurance, compensation etc.; 

c) Industries (Development & Regulation) Act, 1991; 

d) Acts and Rules prescribed under prevention and control of pollution; 

e) Acts and Rules relating to environmental protection and energy conservation; 

f) Acts and Rules relating to hazardous substances and chemicals; 

g) Acts and Rules relating to electricity, fire, petroleum, motor vehicles, explosives, boilers etc.; 

h) Other local laws as applicable to various plants and offices. 

 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(ii) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Women director and Independent Directors as well as for the 

formation of various committees i.e. Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee. 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee has not been constituted this current year as shareholders of the company 

are still below 1000. 

I further report that M/s S. K. Info solutions Private Limited is acting as a Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 

(RTA) and as per proviso of Regulation 40(1) of SEBI (LODR), 2015 requests for effecting transfer of securities 

has been processed by RTA within due time frame. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. All 

decisions are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the Meeting. 

I further report that revocation of listing with Calcutta Stock Exchange is still under process and the company 

is still awaiting for the reply at their end. All the relevant compliances with regards to quarterly, half-yearly and 

annually has been complied. The quarterly financial results under regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015 has not been duly submitted within due time frame for the period under review. The relevant documents 

with respect to various regulations of SEBI have been duly submitted to the Calcutta Stock Exchange. 



 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 

laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 I further report that there were no other instances having a major bearing on the company’s affairs, under 
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. 

I further report that Website is fully functional and updated and the full information as required under SEBI 

(LODR), 2015 has been incorporated. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 

guidelines. 

During the period under review I have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for 

systems and mechanism formed by the Company for the compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and 

Regulations to the Company.   

 

 

 

Date: 31st August, 2024   

Place: Kolkata 

Puja Pujari & Associates                                           

Sd/- 

Puja Pujari 

(Proprietor) 

Practising Company Secretary                                                     

Membership No- F13102                                                                

Certificate of Practice Number-20171 

Peer Review No: 3636 

UDIN: F013102F001171534 

 

 

 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

                                 

 



 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 

Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report. 

                                                                                                                                                                          

Annexure-A 

To, 

The Members of 

The India Jute and Industries Limited 

4A, Shree Ganesh Business Centre,  

216, Acharya J. C. Bose Road,  

Kolkata-700017 
 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to 

ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I 

followed provide a reasonable basis of my opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 

the Company. 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules, 

and regulations and happenings of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 

are the responsibility of the Management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures 

on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 

Date: 31st August, 2024   

Place: Kolkata 

Puja Pujari & Associates                                           

Sd/- 

Puja Pujari 

(Proprietor) 

Practising Company Secretary                                                     

Membership No- F13102                                                                

Certificate of Practice Number-20171 

Peer Review No: 3636 

UDIN: F013102F001171534 

 

 

:  



Independent Auditor’s Report 

To The Members of The India Jute and Industries Limited 

 

 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of The India Jute and Industries Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss 

(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash 

Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information (herein after referred to as “financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for 

the effect/possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, 

the aforesaid  financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the principles generally accepted in 

India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024, and its loss, total comprehensive 

income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

Attention is drawn to the following notes to the financial statement: 

a) Note No. 18(a) regarding non-provision of actuarially ascertained liability for gratuity (to the extent 

identified and ascertained for the period upto 31st March, 2003) aggregating to Rs. 19,463.30 

thousand and non ascertainment and non provision of liability for gratuity for the period from 1st 

April, 2003 to 31st March, 2024 which is not in accordance with Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits”. 
Consequentially, other equity as on 31st March, 2024 would be lower by Rs. 19,463.30 thousand and 

Provisions would be higher by the like amount. However, in absence of actuarial valuation as per Ind 

AS 19 on employee benefit, accrued liability for gratuity has not been ascertained and necessary 

provision has not been made. 

 

b) Note no. 14(i)(2) regarding non-provision of penal interest etc. amounting to Rs. 3,978.77 thousand 

(including Rs.162.76 thousand for the year) on the sales tax loan from West Bengal Industrial 

Development Corporation Ltd. to the extent ascertained in accordance with Ind AS- 1 on 

“Presentation of the Financial Statements”. Consequently, as ascertained, profit for the year ended 
31st March, 2024 would be lower by Rs. 162.76 thousand, other equity would by lower by Rs. 

3,978.77 thousand and other current liabilities would be higher by the like amount. 

 

c) Note No. 2.10(d) regarding non-provision of actuarially ascertained liability for accumulated leave as 

on 31st March, 2024 as the same is accounted for on cash basis (quantum unascertained)  which is 

not in accordance with Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits”.  
 

d) Note no. 14(i)(2) regarding non provision of interest, penal interests, liquidated damages etc. 

payable to the Financial  Institutions / Assignees / Other Parties since 01st April, 2002, which is not in 

accordance with Ind AS-37 on “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, the impact 
of which is presently not ascertainable. 

 

e) Note no. 4 (1) regarding non-ascertainment and non-provision for the impairment of assets which is 

not in accordance with Ind AS-36 on “Impairment of assets”, the impact of which is presently not 
ascertainable. 
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f) Note no. 6 with regard to non-ascertainment of status, classification under current and non -current 

and recoverability of fixed deposit for Rs. 1943.26 thousand pledged with State Bank of India and 

security deposit of Rs. 33.06 thousand; 

 

g) Note no. 7 regarding non-ascertainment of realizable value of inventories (other than finished 

goods) and consequent impact on its carrying amount as on 31st March, 2024, if any, is not in 

accordance with Ind AS-2 on “Valuation of Inventories”, the impact of which is presently not 
ascertainable; 

 

h) Note no. 14(i)(4) regarding shortfall in the book value of security as compared to the amount of 

secured loan; 

 

i) Note no. 14(i)(8) regarding non classification of borrowings under current and non -current as 

required under Schedule III to the Act; 

 

j) Note No. 14(i)(10) and 14(i)(11) regarding unsecured loans arranged in earlier years by the 

promoters include loans from relatives in terms of the Draft Rehabilitation scheme submitted to the 

BIFR which is subject to compliance of section 77 of the Act. 

 

k) Write back of Excise Duty Loan obtained under a Scheme for Excise Relief for weak Industrial units in 

terms of Notification no. 6-3/85/1F-1D dated 17th October, 1989 amounting to Rs. 35,377.00 

thousands was written back in previous year. Also non-provision of liquidated damages aggregating 

to Rs. 1,33,828.76 thousand as on 31st March, 2023 on the aforesaid loan. Consequently, as 

ascertained, other equity would by lower by Rs. 1,69,205.76 thousand and borrowings and other 

current liabilities would be higher by Rs. 35,377.00 thousands and Rs. 1,33,828.76 thousands 

respectively. 

 

l) Note no.18(c) regarding non-provision for dues, interest, penalty and other liability for delay/default 

in payment of statutory/other liabilities/gratuity etc. the impact of which is not ascertainable; 

 

m) Note no. 29(1) regarding non provision of demand /show cause notices received for (i) excise duty 

payable, (ii) and (iii) regarding Sales Tax and turnover Tax including interest thereon, Note no. (iv) 

regarding Provident Fund and Note no. (v) regarding ESIC, in accordance with Ind AS-37 on 

“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets “ the impact of which is currently not 

ascertainable; 

 

n) Note no. 29(2) regarding non-ascertainment of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as 

required under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006” and 
consequential non provision of interest payable to these enterprises, if any; 

 

o) Note no. 29(6)(d) regarding payment of remuneration to managerial personnel amounted to Rs. 

2,631.24 thousand pertaining to earlier years  is subject to approval of Central Government; 

 

p) Note no. 29(12) regarding non confirmation of certain balances and consequential reconciliation and 

adjustments arising in the respect and Note no. 14(i), 14(ii), 6, 8, 15(i), 15(ii) and 11 regarding 

eventual shortfall in values and their impact in respect of Borrowings, Security Deposits, Fixed 

Deposits, Inventories, Trade receivables, Trade payable, Loans and Advances which is currently not 

ascertainable; 
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q) Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern  

The company has suffered substantial losses leading to erosion of its net worth as on 31st March, 

2024.  The company has prepared its financial statements on going concern basis for reason being 

stated in Note No. 29(8). However, the ability of the company to continue as a going concern is 

dependent upon the future profitability and viability of operations which presently cannot be 

commented upon;  

 

We further report that, without considering the impact of items mentioned in the point (c) to (j) and 

(l) to (p) above, the effect of which could not be ascertained presently, had the impact of the item 

referred to in Point (a) to (b) and (k) above been given in the financial statement, the loss for the 

year would have been Rs.26,176.55 thousands (as against the reported loss of Rs.26,013.79 

thousands), Other equity would have been in negative for Rs. 3,36,726.55 thousands (as against the 

reported negative figure of Rs.1,44,078.72 thousands), Provision would have been Rs.52,081.65 

thousands (as against the reported figure of Rs. 32,618.35 thousand), Borrowings would have been 

Rs. 1,98,576.65 thousands (as against the reported figure of Rs. 1,63,199.65 thousand), and other 

current financial liabilities would have been Rs. 1,43,794.69 thousand (as against the reported figure 

of Rs. 5,987.16 thousand). 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 

143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 

of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 

financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 

Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our qualified opinion.  

 

Emphasis of matter 

1. Note no. 14(i)(6) regarding write back of certain unsecured loans amounting to Rs. 1,000.00 

thousands  during the year for the reason stated in the said note. Also non-provision of interest 

aggregating to Rs. 5,913.90 thousand (including Rs. 149.59 thousand for the year) on aforesaid loan.  

 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 

audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our qualified opinion thereon, and we do not 

provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Accuracy of recognition, measurement, 

presentation and disclosures of revenues and 

Our procedures, in relation to revenue 

recognition for those contracts, included: 
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other related balances in view of adoption of 

Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers” (new revenue accounting 
standard)  

The application of the new revenue 

accounting standard involves certain key 

judgements relating to identification of 

distinct performance obligations, 

determination of transaction price of the 

identified performance obligations, the 

appropriateness of the basis used to measure 

revenue recognised over a period. 

Additionally, new revenue accounting 

standard contains disclosures which involves 

collation of information in respect of 

disaggregated revenue and periods over 

which the remaining performance obligations 

will be satisfied subsequent to the balance 

sheet date.  

 

Refer Notes 2.7 and 19 to the Financial 

Statements  
 

• Understanding and evaluating the design 

and testing the operating effectiveness of 

controls in respect of revenue recognition 

• Reading the underlying contracts with 

customers and advances received 

• Assessing the appropriateness of 

information, such as allotment letter, and 

stage of completion of the project including 

expected completion date, completion 

certificate and possession letter used by the 

Management, to determine the duration of 

the project. 

• Evaluating the assumptions used by the 

Management in ascertaining performance 

obligation is satisfied over time or at a point 

in time in accordance with Ind AS 115. 

• Selected a sample of agreements, and 

tested the operating effectiveness of the 

internal control, relating to identification of 

the distinct performance obligations and 

determination of transaction price, 

satisfaction of performance obligation at a 

point of time and in recording and disclosing 

revenue in accordance with the new 

revenue accounting standard.  

 

Based on the above procedures performed we 

did not find any significant exceptions in 

revenue recognized in the financial statements. 

 

Information Other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon  

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s 
Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is 
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report. 
 

Our qualified opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated.  

 

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are 

required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 

position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the 

Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 

of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the  financial statements that give a true 

and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is  responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

That Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control.  

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 

for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system 

in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
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we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern.  

•  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 

a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 

that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 

key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 

be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, 
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:  

 

i. We have sought and, except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 

paragraph, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

ii. Except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our opinion, 

proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books. 

 

iii. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash flow dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the relevant books of account. 

 

iv. Except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our opinion, 

the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the 

Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
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v. The matter described in the Basis for Qualified opinion paragraph, in our opinion, may have an 

adverse effect on the functioning of the Company; 

 

vi. On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31st March, 2024 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 

2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.  

 

vii. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

“Annexure B”. 
 

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of 

our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

a. Except for the matters dealt with in the basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, the 

impact whereof are presently not ascertainable, impact of pending litigations (other than 

those already recognized in the accounts) on the financial position of the Company have 

been disclosed in the financial statement as required in terms of Ind AS and provisions of 

the Act –Refer Note No. 29(1) to the Financial Statements. 

 

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses. 

 

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred to be 

transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

d. (i)The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or 

invested (either from borrowed funds or any other sources or kinds of funds) by the 

Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 

shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities, identified in 

any manner whatsoever by or behalf of the Company (“Ultimate  Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 

(ii)The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the 

Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity(“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, 

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in any other person or entities, identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or behalf of the Funding party (“Ultimate  Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;  

 

(iii)Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in 

the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) 

above, contain any material misstatement. 

 

e. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. 
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f. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting 

software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 

which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 

throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during 

the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being 

tampered with.  

 

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1st April, 

2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on 

preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not 

applicable for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 

 

  

4. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

Except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph (Note no. 29 

(6d)), in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in 

accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.  

 

 

For G. P. Agrawal & Co. 

Chartered Accountants         

Firm's Registration No. - 302082E 

 

Sd/- 

(CA. Sunita Kedia)         

Partner 

Membership No. 060162 

UDIN: 24060162BKAJZE9550 

 

Place of Signature: Kolkata 

Date: The 31st day of August, 2024 
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Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report  

 

Statement referred to in paragraph ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of 
even date to the members of The India Jute and Industries Limited on the financial statements for the year 

ended 31st March, 2024. 

 

(i) a)  (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 

quantitative details and situation of its Property, plant and equipment. Further, records 

in respect of Property, plant and equipment acquired prior to 1stApril, 1956 have been 

compiled by allocating the total cost and depreciation to individual items on the basis of 

physical verification carried out by the company’s technical personnel during the year 
1976-77. 

 

   

  (B) The Company does not have any Intangible Asset. Therefore, reporting under clause 

(i) (a) (B) of paragraph 3 of the said order are not applicable to the Company. 

 

   

 b) As informed to us, the Property, plant and equipment have not been physically verified 

during the year. In the absence of such physical verification, discrepancies, if any, with 

the book records have not been ascertained. 

   

 c) 

 

 

 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of the immovable property 

have been mortgaged with the Financial Institutions/Assignees i.e Shakambhari Traders 

Limited, Karjan Vyapaar Private Limited and United Credit Limited, for securing the 

borrowings and loan raised by the Company. However, in the absence of a confirmation 

about the same from the respective institution to this effect, we are unable to comment 

whether the title deeds of the immovable properties disclosed in the financial 

statements are held in the name of the Company. 

   

 d) 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and 

Equipment during the year. 

   

 e) According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented by 

management, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against 

the Company as at 31st March, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami 

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

Therefore, reporting under clause (i) (e) of paragraph 3 of the said order are not 

applicable to the Company. 

   

(ii) a)  As explained to us and based on our examination of records, the inventories have been 

physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion and according to 

the information and explanations given to us, the frequency of such verification is 

reasonable. 

 

In our opinion and according to explanations given to us, the procedure for physical 

verification of stocks followed by the management is reasonable and adequate in 

relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business. 
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 b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore 

rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of 

current assets. Therefore, reporting under clauses (ii) (b) of paragraph 3 of the order is 

not applicable to the Company. 

 

(iii)  

 

 

 

During the year, the Company has not made investment in, provided any guarantee or 

security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, 

to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Therefore, 

clauses (iii) (a) to (f) of paragraph 3 of the said order are not applicable to the Company. 

   

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are 

no, loans, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of Section 185 

and 186 of the Act are applicable. Based on our audit procedures performed and 

according to information and explanations given by the management, the Company has 

complied with provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of investments. 

   

(v)  The Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of section 73 to 76 or 

any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. The directives 

issued by the Reserve Bank of India are not applicable to the Company. 

   

(vi)  The provisions regarding maintenance of the cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act 

are not applicable to the Company. Therefore, clauses (vi) (a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of 

the said order are not applicable to the Company. 

   

(vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the examination 

of the records of the Company as provided to us, the Company is regular in depositing 

undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income 

tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and other statutory dues, to the extent 

applicable, with appropriate authorities.  
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 b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the details of the disputed 

statutory dues aggregating to Rs. 48,484.65 thousands that have not been deposited on 

account of matters pending before appropriate authorities are as under:  
 

 

Name of the Statute Nature of 

dues 

Period to      

which pertain 

Amount      

(Rs. in 

Thousands) 

Forum where the 

dispute is pending 

The Central Excise Act Excise duty 1991-1994 

1996-1999 

2000-2001 

2,786.39 Tribunal 

The Central Excise Act Excise duty 1993-1994 

1994-1995 

1997-1998 

73.12 Appellate Authority 

The Central Excise Act Excise duty 1976-1977 

1994-1995 

 to 

1998-1999 

3,384.03 High court 

Bengal Finance Sales Tax 

Act,1941 

Sales Tax 1994-1995 1,974.01 Appellate Authority 

West Bengal Sales Tax 

Act,1954 

Sales Tax 1994-1995 

 

44.79 Appellate Authority 

West Bengal Sales Tax 

Act,1994 

Sales Tax 1995-1996 

To 

1998-1999 

21,530.90 Appellate Authority 

Central Sales Tax, 1956 Sales Tax 1994-1995 

To  

2002-2003 

7,220.91 Appellate Authority 

Central Sales Act and Sales 

Tax act of various states 

Interest on 

arrear sales 

tax and 

turnover tax 

Prior 1987 332.00 Various Tribunal and 

appellate Authority 

The W.B. Tax on Entry of 

Goods into Local Areas Act, 

2012 

West 

Bengal 

Entry Tax 

2013-2014 

To  

2016-2017 

5,345.51 High Court 

The Employee State 

Insurance Act,1948 

Employees 

State 

Insurance 

1989- 1993 330.29 ESI Court 

The Employee State 

Insurance Act, 1948 

Employees 

State 

Insurance 

1987- 1992 634.66 ESI Court 

Employees’ Provident Fund 
&Miscellaneous Provisions 

Act, 1952 

Damages on 

delayed 

payment of 

P.F. 

May’2000 

To March’2004 

3,721.85 High Court 

Goods and Service Tax 2017 

 

 

GST  July 2023 573.18 Appellate Authority 

Service Tax Act Service Tax March 2024 533.01 

 

Appellate Authority 
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(viii)  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 

surrendered   or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the 

Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

   

(ix) a) As stated in note no. 29(12) of Notes to the financial statements, the balances of 

secured loans are pending for confirmation and reconciliation. Further, as stated in note 

no. 14(2) and 14(5) and according to the records of the Company and/or information 

and explanation provided to us, the Company has defaulted in the repayment of 

principal amount and interest on loans dues to financial institution/Assignees / Other 

Parties and as far as ascertained, details of amount outstanding in this respect as on 31st 

March, 2024 are as follows: 
 

Name of lender Nature of 

borrowing 

Period of 

Default 

Amount not 

paid (Rs. in 

thousands) 

IFCI Limited (The Original Lender) assigned 

to Assets Care Enterprise Limited (Further 

assigned by Asset Care Enterprise Limited 

to Shakambhari Traders Ltd.) 

Term loan: 

Principal 

Interest 

Since 15th April, 

1998 

     

9,685.83 

4,958.21  

IDBI Limited (The Original Lender) assigned 

to Karjan Vyapaar Private Limited 

Term loan: 

Principal 

Interest 

Since 15th April, 

1998 

     

8,423.00 

414.84  

IIBI Limited (The Original Lender) assigned 

to United Credit Limited 

Term loan: 

Principal 

Interest 

Since 15th April, 

1998 

     

4,853.24 

1,247.89 

  

West Bengal Development Corporation of 

India Ltd. (WBIDC)-Sales Tax Loan 

Term loan: 

Principal 

Interest 

Since 30th 

September, 

1999 

1,860.08 

334.20 

 

Also refer Note no. 14(2) regarding non provision of penal interest etc. amounting to Rs. 3,978.77 thousand 

(including Rs.162.76 thousand for the year) on the sales tax loan from West Bengal Industrial Development 

Corporation Ltd. to the extent ascertained in accordance with Ind AS- 1 on “Presentation of the Financial 
Statements. 
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 b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution 

or government or any government authority. 

 c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year. Hence, reporting under 

clause (ix)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 d) The Company has not raised any funds during the year; therefore, clause (ix) (d) of 

paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 e) The Company has no subsidiary, associate or joint venture and hence reporting on 
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clause (ix)(e) and (f) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

   

(x) a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public 

offer (including debt instruments) or term loans during the year. Therefore, clause (x)(a) 

of paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable to the Company. 

 b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 

or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year and 

hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company. 

   

(xi) a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the 

Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported 

during the year. 

   

 b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 

as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 

Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report. 

   

 c) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our 

examination of the records, the Company has not received any whistle-blower 

complaint during the year. 

   

(xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the 

order is not applicable to the Company. 

   

(xiii)  Except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph (Note n), 

according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 

examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are 

in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of 

such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 

applicable accounting standards. 

   

(xiv) a) In our opinion and based on our examination, he company has an internal audit system 

commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

 b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 

Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of 

our audit procedures.  

   

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-

cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, clause 

(xv) of paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable to the Company. 

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.) 
(xvi) a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of 

the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under Clause (xvi)(a) and (b) of 

paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

   

 b) In our opinion, the company is not a Core Investment Company and there is no core 
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investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies 

(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause (c) and (d) of 

paragraph 3  of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

   

(xvii)  The company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year amounting to Rs. 

26,860.24 thousand. However, no cash losses were incurred in the immediately 

preceding financial year. 

   

(xviii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the 

year. 

   

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of 

financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying 

the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 

Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 

assumptions, in our opinion, material uncertainty may exists as on the date of the 

audit report indicating that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities 

existing at the date of balance sheet. We further state that our reporting is based on 

the facts up to the date of the audit report (Refer Note p in the in the Basis for 

Qualified Opinion paragraph of our Audit report). 

(xx)  The Company is not required to spend towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). 

Therefore the provisions of clause (xx) (a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not 

applicable to the Company. 

   

(xxi)  The Company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements. Therefore 

the provisions of clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the 

Company. 

 

 

 

 

 

 For G. P. Agrawal & Co. 

 Chartered Accountants      

 Firm's Registration No. - 302082E 

  

                                      Sd/- 

 (CA. Sunita Kedia) 

Place of Signature: Kolkata Partner      

Date: The 31st  day of August, 2024 Membership No. 060162 

                                            UDIN: 24060162BKAJZE9550 
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report  

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of The India Jute and Industries 

limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of 

the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities 

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 

Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 

information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an 

audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained 

and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 

financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that: 

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;  

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 

expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 

directors of the Company; and  

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 

or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 

over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 

financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Qualified Opinion 

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material 

weaknesses have been identified in the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting as at 
31st March, 2024: 

a. As stated in Note no. 29(12) of the financial statement, the Company does not have a process of 

obtaining year end confirmation of balances in respect of Borrowings, Security Deposit, Trade 

Receivables, Trade Payables, Other Current Liabilities, Short term Loans and Advances and Fixed 

Deposit Accounts. 

b. As stated in Note no. 18(c) and 14(2) of the financial statement, the Company does not have control 

in respect of ascertainment and extent of dues payable with regard to loan/interest/penal interest, 

liquidated damages, gratuity etc. payable to financial institution/assignee/other parties; 

c. As stated in basis of qualified opinion para read with Note no. 14(2), 14(8), 14(10), 29(2), 18(a), 4(1), 

6, 7 and 29(1) of the financial statement, the Company’s financial statement is not prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles including relevant Ind AS. 
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A ‘’material weakness’’ is deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control 

over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of 

the Company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on timely 

basis. 

 

In our opinion, except for the effects / possible effects of the material weaknesses described above 

under Qualified Opinion paragraph on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the 

Company has, in all material respects an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 

31st March, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.  

 

We have considered material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature, 

timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 31st March, 2024 financial statements of 

the Company and these material weaknesses affect our opinion on financial statements of the 

Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024 [our audit report dated 31st August, 2024, which 

expressed an qualified opinion on those financial statements of the Company]. 

 

 

 For G. P. Agrawal & Co. 

 Chartered Accountants      

 Firm's Registration No. - 302082E 

  

                                                              Sd/- 

 (CA. Sunita Kedia) 

Place of Signature: Kolkata Partner      

Date: The 31st  day of August, 2024 Membership No. 060162 

                                            UDIN: 24060162BKAJZE9550 

 



(Amount in Rs. in '000)
Note As at 31st As at 31st
No. March, 2024 March, 2023

I. ASSETS

(1)      Non - current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 42,193.61 43,182.44 
(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments 5 6.80 6.80 
(ii) Other financial assets 6 9,861.87 8,822.69 

52,062.28 52,011.93 
(2)      Current assets

(a) Inventories 7 89,128.64 88,624.88 
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 8 13,432.72 22,700.70 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 7,317.83 15,496.00 

(c) Current tax assets 10 782.07 719.84 
(d) Other current assets 11 10,440.67 11,494.44 

1,21,101.93 1,39,035.86 

Total Assets 1,73,164.21 1,91,047.79 

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1)      Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12 25,800.00 25,800.00 
(b) Other equity 13  (1,44,078.72)  (1,18,064.93)

Total Equity  (1,18,278.72)  (92,264.93)
Liabilities

(2)      Non - current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 14(i) 47,373.17                           43,164.03                           
(ii) Trade payables 15(i)

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises (Refer note no.29(2)) -                                       -                                       
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises -                                       1,646.79                              

47,373.17 44,810.82 
(3)      Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14(ii) 1,15,826.48                        1,18,783.36                        
(ii) Trade payables 15(ii)

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises (Refer note no.29(2)) -                                       -                                       
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 68,462.13 60,475.90 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 16 21,175.64 18,303.14 
(b) Other current liabilities 17 5,987.16 8,606.58 
(c) Provisions 18 32,618.35 32,332.92 

2,44,069.76 2,38,501.90 

Total Equity and Liabilities 1,73,164.21 1,91,047.79 

Corporate information 1
Material accounting policies and estimates 2-3
Other disclosures and additional regulatory information 29

As per our report of even date attached.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants The India Jute and Industries Limited
Firm's Registration No. - 302082E

(CA. Sunita Kedia) B.K. Jalan D.K. Sharma
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 060162 DIN-00876208 DIN-08538616
UDIN : 24060162BKAJZE9550

Place of Signature: Kolkata D. K. Sharma Goutam Mondal
Dated: The  31st  day of  August, 2024  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

The accompanying notes 1 to 29 are an integral part of the  
financial statements.

Particulars

THE INDIA JUTE AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN NO.: L17119WB1916PLC002720

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024



(Amount in Rs. in '000)
Note Year Year
No. ended 31st ended 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023
I. 19 4,23,208.76 6,21,726.08 

II. Other income 20 3,293.14 36,462.96 

III. Total Income (I+II) 4,26,501.90 6,58,189.04 

IV. Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 21 2,72,975.02 4,11,332.33 
Purchase of stock in trade 21A  - 371.48 

22  (1,060.21) 33,143.18 

Employee benefits expense 23 96,432.14 1,04,582.04 

Finance costs 24 7,868.25 8,598.15 
Depreciation expense 25 2,722.66 3,591.16 
Other expenses 26 73,577.83 86,743.53 

Total expenses (IV) 4,52,515.69 6,48,361.87 

V. Profit/(loss) before tax (III-IV)  (26,013.79) 9,827.17 

VI. Tax expense 27
Current tax  -  - 
Deferred tax  -  - 

Tax expense  -  - 

VII. Profit/(loss) for the year (V-VI)  (26,013.79) 9,827.17 

VIII. Other comprehensive income  -  - 

IX. Total comprehensive income for the year (VII + VIII)  (26,013.79) 9,827.17 

X. 28
- Basic (Rs.) (10.08) 3.81
- Diluted (Rs.) (10.08) 3.81

25,80,000                          25,80,000                            

Corporate information 1
Material accounting policies and estimates 2-3
Other disclosures and additional regulatory information 29

As per our report of even date attached.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants The India Jute and Industries Limited
Firm's Registration No. - 302082E

B.K. Jalan D.K. Sharma
(CA. Sunita Kedia) Managing Director Director
Partner DIN-00876208 DIN-08538616
Membership No. 060162
UDIN:24060162BKAJZE9550

Place of Signature: Kolkata D.K. Sharma Goutam Mondal
Dated: The  31st  day of  August, 2024  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
CIN NO.: L17119WB1916PLC002720

THE INDIA JUTE AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

The accompanying notes 1 to 29 are an integral part of the  financial 
statements.

Particulars

Revenue from operations

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and waste

Earnings per equity share (nominal value per share Rs.10/-)

Weighted number of shares used in computing earnings per equity share



(a) Equity Share capital

For the year ended 31st March, 2024 (Amount in Rs. in '000)
Balance as at 1st April, 

2023
 Changes in equity share capital 

during the year 
Balance as at March 31, 

2024

25,800.00 - 25,800.00 

For the year ended 31 March, 2023 (Amount in '000)
Balance as at 1st April, 

2022
 Changes in equity share capital 

during the year 
Balance as at March 31, 

2023

25,800.00 - 25,800.00 

(b) Other equity

(Amount in Rs. in '000)

Capital reserve Retained earnings 

3,898.00  (1,21,962.93)  (1,18,064.93)
 -  (26,013.79)  (26,013.79)
 -  -  - 

3,898.00  (1,47,976.72)  (1,44,078.72)

3,898.00  (1,31,790.10)  (1,27,892.10)
 - 9,827.17 9,827.17 
 -  -  - 

3,898.00  (1,21,962.93)  (1,18,064.93)

The accompanying notes 1 to 29 are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants The India Jute and Industries Limited
Firm's Registration No. - 302082E

(CA. Sunita Kedia) B.K. Jalan D.K. Sharma
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 060162 DIN-00876208 DIN-08538616
UDIN:24060162BKAJZE9550

Place of Signature: Kolkata D.K. Sharma Goutam Mondal
Dated: The  31st  day of  August, 2024  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Total

Particulars

Balance as at 1st April, 2022
Profit/(loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Profit/(loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2024

Balance as at 1st April, 2023

Reserves and surplus 

THE INDIA JUTE AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN NO.: L17119WB1916PLC002720

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024



(Amount in Rs. in '000)
Year ended

31st March, 2024
Year ended

31st March, 2023

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit/(loss) before tax (26,013.79) 9,827.17
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash flow provided by operating 
activities :
Depreciation 2,722.66                                     3,591.16                                     
Finance costs 7,868.25                                     8,598.15                                     
Interest income  (547.16)  (594.19)
Provision for Doubtful Debts written back  (334.02) 0.000
Liabilities no longer required written back  (2,302.12)  (35,377.00)
Operating profit before working capital changes:  (18,606.18)  (13,954.71)

Adjustments to reconcile operating profit to cash flows:

Increase / (decrease) in trade payable 6,339.45 (13,378.77)
Increase / (Decrease) in current provisions 285.42                                        570.18                                        
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables 9,601.99  (9,590.35)
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities  (2,619.41)  (7,439.33)
Decrease / (increase) in other financial assets  (1,059.91)  (1,099.00)
Decrease / (increase) in other current assets 1,053.76 4,976.95 
Decrease / (increase) in inventories  (503.75) 68,341.22 

Cash generated from operations  (5,508.62) 28,426.19 
Direct taxes paid  (41.50) 1,606.25 
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities  (5,550.12) 30,032.44 

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (1,733.84)  (2,752.76)
Interest income 547.16 594.19 
Net cash used in investing activities  (1,186.68)  (2,158.57)

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long term borrowings 6,535.77 4,756.09 
Proceeds from/(repayment of) short term borrowings (net)  (2,981.39)  (15,573.61)
Interest paid  (4,995.75)  (9,791.91)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing activities  (1,441.37)  (20,609.43)
 Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (8,178.17) 7,264.44 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 15,496.00                                  8,231.56                                     

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 7,317.83 15,496.00 
Notes:

1) Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year consists of: 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 
Cash on hand                                            56.96                                            32.71 
Balance with banks
    On current accounts                                      7,260.87                                   15,463.29 
Closing cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flows (Refer 
Note No.9) 7,317.83 15,496.00 

2)

3) Change in liabilities arising from financing activities
Movement in assets and liabilities arising from financing activities during the year ended 31.03.2024 are as follows: (Amount in '000) 

As at 31.03.2023 Cash Flows Others As at 31.03.2024
a. Non current borrowings (refer note no. 14(i)) 43,164.03                                  6,511.26  (2,302.12) 47,373.17                         
b. Current maturities of long term debt (refer note no. 14(ii)) 266.36                                        24.51                                           -                                               290.87                               
c. Short term borrowings (refer note no. 14(ii))* 1,18,517.00                                (2,981.39)  - 1,15,535.61                     

1,61,947.39                               3,554.38  (2,302.12) 1,63,199.65                     

Movement in assets and liabilities arising from financing activities during the year ended 31.03.2023 are as follows: (Amount in '000)
As at 31.03.2022 Cash Flows Others As at 31.03.2023

a. Non current borrowings (refer note no. 14(i)) 73,807.39                                  4,733.64  (35,377.00) 43,164.03                         
b. Current maturities of long term debt (refer note no. 14(ii)) 243.91                                        22.45                                           -                                               266.36                               
c. Short term borrowings (refer note no. 14(ii))* 1,34,090.61                                (15,573.61) -                                               1,18,517.00                     

2,08,141.91                                (10,817.52)  (35,377.00) 1,61,947.39                     
* Exclusive current maturities of long term debt.

4) Cash and cash equivalents do not include any amount which is not available to the company for its use.

5) Figure in brackets represent cash outflow from respective activities.

Corporate information
Material accounting policies and estimates
Other disclosures and additional regulatory information

The accompanying notes 1 to 29 are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors                        
Chartered Accountants The India Jute and Industries Limited                          
Firm's Registration No. - 302082E

B.K. Jalan D.K. Sharma
(CA. Sunita Kedia) Managing Director Director
Partner DIN-00876208 DIN-08538616
Membership No. 060162
UDIN:24060162BKAJZE9550

Place of Signature: Kolkata D.K. Sharma Goutam Mondal
Dated: The  31st  day of  August, 2024  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Particulars

The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the '' Indirect Method '' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS)  7 on Statement of Cash Flows.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
CIN NO.: L17119WB1916PLC002720

THE INDIA JUTE AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED





























































(ii) Title deed of immovable property

(iii) Ratio
The following are analytical Ratios for the year ended 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023:

Sl. 
No.

Ratio
March, 2024 March, 2023

Variance
( in %)

Reason for 
variance +/-
25%

1 Current Ratio  (in times) 0.50                 0.58                  -15% -                      
2 Debt-Equity Ratio (in times) -1.38                (1.76)                 -21% -                      
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times) -1.89                2.48                  -176%  Loss incurred 

during current 
year 

4 Return on Equity Ratio (%) 24.71% -10.11% -344%  Loss incurred 
during current 
year 

5 Inventory Turnover Ratio (in times) 4.76                 5.06                  -6% -                      
6 Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio (in 

times)
23.42               34.72                -33%  Decrease in 

sales  
7 Trade Payables Turnover Ratio (in times) 3.94                 5.94                  -34%  Decrease in 

purchase and 
payables 

8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in times) (3.44)               (6.74)                 -49%  Decrease in 
sales  

9 Net Profit Ratio (%) -6.15% 1.58% -489%

10 Return on Capital Employed (%) 25.59% -37.53% -168%

11 Return on Investment (%) NA NA NA
# Earning for Debt Service = Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses + Interest
*  Capital employed = Net worth + Long term borrowings

(iii)

14

 As per our Report of even date attached

For G. P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants     The India Jute and Industries Limited
Firm's Registration No. - 302082E

(CA. Sunita Kedia) B.K. Jalan D.K. Sharma
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. 060162 DIN-00876208 DIN-08538616
UDIN:24060162BKAJZE9550

Place of Signature: Kolkata D.K. Sharma Goutam Mondal

Dated: The  31st  day of  August, 2024  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

The title deeds of the immovable property have been mortgaged with the Financial Institutions/Assignees i.e Shakambhari Traders Limited, Karjan Vyapaar Private Limited and United Credit 
Limited, for securing the borrowings and loan raised by the Company. However, the same is subject to confirmation from the respective institution to this effect.

Income from investment Average investment

THE INDIA JUTE AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN NO.: L17119WB1916PLC002720

Note forming part of the Financial Statements (Contd.)

Numerator Denominator

Disclosures required under Additional regulatory information as prescribed under paragraph 6L to general instructions for preparation of Balance Sheet under Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company except as disclosed in Para 29(13)(i) to (iii) above.

Average Accounts Payable

Revenue from operations Working Capital

Profit /(loss) for the year
Revenue from operations

Profit before interest and taxes Capital employed*

Current Assets Current Liabilities
Total debt Shareholder’s equity
Earnings available for debt service# Debt service = Interest + Principal 

repayments

Net profit/(loss) after tax
Average shareholder's equity

Revenue from operations Average Inventory

 Loss incurred 
during current 

year 

The previous year’s figures have been rearranged wherever necessary to make them comparable with those of current year figures. Amounts and other disclosures for the preceding year are included as an
integral part of the current year financial statements and are to be read in relation to the amounts and other disclosures relating to the current year.

Revenue from operations Average Accounts Receivable

Total Purchases

                     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors                        


